Statement of the Case 

By application filed on November 3, 1982, MCI 

Telecommunications Corporation (here-in-after referred to as 

MCI), filed an application before the Flor ida Public Service 

Commission (here-in-after referred to as the FPSC or the 

Commission) for author i ty to offer to the general pUblic for 

hire interci ty communications common carr ier services by the 

use of microwave and other means, but not limi ted to, the 

resale of MTS and WATS services between points in the state of 

Florida, pursuant to the provisions of Section 364.33, 

364.335, and 364.337, Florida Statutes (1982). (R 1) 

Timely petitions to intervene in the proceeding were 

filed by Microtel, Inc. (here-in-after referred to as 

Microtel), General Telephone of Florida, Inc. (here-in-after 

referrred to as GTF) , and Southern Bell Telephone & Telegraph 

Company, Inc. (here-in-after referred to as Bell). (R 147, 

149, 166) 

Appropriate orders were issued by the Commission 

granting said interventions at 157, 165, and 169 respectively. 

A pre-hearing conference was held before the Commission on 

March 14, 1983 and an order on the pre-hear ing conference was 

issued by the Commission. (R 174) Hear ings were held before 

the Commission on March 21, 1983, after which the parties were 

permitted to file briefs on April 19, 1983. On July 25, 

1984, Order No. 12292 was issued by the Commission granting 
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the application sought by MCI. (R 264) An appropriate and 

timely Motion for Reconsideration, Motion for Stay, and 

Request for Oral Argument was filed by Microte1 on August 9, 

1983 and MCI likewise filed a Motion for Reconsideration of a 

portion of same order on August 9, 1983. (R 272, 281) On 

December 29, 1983, the Commission entered Order No. 12824 

denying the Peti tion for Reconsideration of Microte1 and the 

petition of MCI. (R 308) 

It is to Order No. 12292 granting the certificate 

issued July 25, 1983 and Order No. 12824 denying 

reconsideration to which this appeal is directed. Timely 

notice of appeal was filed by Microte1 on January 26, 1984. 

(R 326) For convenience of the Court, copies of Orders 12292 

and 12824 are attached in the Appendix to this brief. 
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Brief Procedural Explanation 

The application filed by MCl with the Commission 

actually sought two separate types of authority. The first 

was authority to purchase bulk capacity from other common 

carriers of telecommunications and resell MTS and WATS service 

through switches operated by MCl, which is commonly referred 

to as the purchase resale application. (R 170) The main 

portion of the author i ty requested by MCl was author i ty to 

construct and operate its own microwave telecommunications 

system to be supplemented by other methods of communications 

such as satellite, fiber optics, etc. Microtel did not oppose 

and does not oppose the purchase resale portion of the 

application and so ind ica ted to the Commission. Accord ingly, 

Order No. 11800 granting the purchase resale certificate is 

not the subject of this appeal. (R 181) 
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Statement of Facts 

Mcr's total case in chief was presented by all company 

employees with the exception of one expert witness retained by 

Mcr as an expert economist. No public wi tness testimony was 

presented by Mcr whatsoever. (TR 46) Throughout the direct 

and cross examination of witnesses presented by MCr, are 

references to the "Microtel order." Microtel filed an 

application in March 1980 seek ing author i ty to construct and 

operate a statewide telecommunication system providing 

interexchange services on its own facilities. After 

approximately 2~ years, on August 23, 1982, in Docket No. 

800333-TP, by Order No. 11095, Microtel was granted such 

authority. (See Ex 8, Vol. 5) For convenience of the Court, 

a copy of the Microtel order is set forth in the Appendix at 

Pages 1-13 and an amendatory order issued January 13, 1983 at 

Append ix 14. No appeals were ever taken from the Microtel 

orders. 

The first witness for Mcr was its President, Mr. 

Wright, who indicated that Mcr filed for authority in Florida 

to supplement its interstate network which it intended to 

construct regardless whether or not they were granted 

intrastate authority. (TR 78) The witness indicated that he 

was seeking a certificate identical to that which the 

Commission had previously issued to Microtel. (TR 44) The 

wi tness further indicated that he was not familiar wi th what 
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services, if any, Microtel was providing (TR 45) and made the 

assertion that "we go about making a determination on where we 

should bu ild and what our construction program should be by 

doing an economic analysis. We look at the number, number of 

households in a particular community, and the number of 

businesses in a particular community." (TR 45) In fact, Mr. 

Wright said that the only reason MCI is filing for authority 

in Flor ida is that it would be a profit center for MCI. (TR 

45) MCI, however, did not file with the Commission any market 

studies, economic analysis, or any other data upon which the 

Commission could make a determination of public interest. (TR 

46) Mr. Wright indicated that MCI would not produce any 

public witnesses nor did MCI present any analysis of the 

public market available in the state of Florida to 

interexchange carriers. (TR 46) The witness was not familiar 

with what services, if any, were provided by Microtel or 

proposed by Microtel nor at what cost to the public. (TR 48) 

The witness indicated in all candor that he had no idea 

whether MCI was proposing anything that was not already being 

done or proposed to be done by Microtel for the public of this 

state. (TR 52) 

A second wi tness, Mr. Prater, Manager of Eng ineer ing 

Standards for MCI, descr ibed the construction schedule of the 

company, but indicated that he was not familiar at all with 

the engineering design concept of the facilities that Microtel 

has in place or planned in the state. (TR 99) The witness 
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had no knowledge of how the fiber optic system was being 

designed from an engineering standpoint and indicated that all 

MCl traff ic today to and from the state of Flor ida is handled 

by carriers other than MCL (TR 102) Witness did indicate 

that the digital switch, such as Microtel operates, is 

superior to that which MCl presently operates in Miami. (TR 

103) 

The third witness, Mr. Beach, Director of Regulatory 

and Carr ier Relations for MCl, stated that MCl proposed to 

provide ini tially the same kind of leased services that they 

are providing on an interstate basis. (TR 139) The witness 

indicated that the grant of purchase resale license to MCl 

would make it possible for all of MCl' s customers to have 

intrastate communications utilizing other carriers the same as 

it is presently doing with its interstate traffic. (TR 172) 

The witness acknowledged that there had been complaints filed 

against MCl with the Federal Communications Commission. He 

further stated that he in no way was contending that Microtel 

does not have the technical qualifications to provide quality 

of services equal to that of MCl. (TR 178) Wi tness did state 

that MCl would not be agreeable to uniform rates wi th other 

interexchange carr iers because it is the company IS position 

thatit elects to have its own set of rates and would not 

become a party to any common tariff in interexchange service. 

(TR 180) 
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Dr. Nina Cornell, an expert witness for MCl, testified 

that the testimony presented in this case was as a paid 

consultant. (TR 254) She was not familiar whether the rates 

proposed by MCl were the same or different than those of 

Microtel and further indicated that until the cost of 

accessing the local telephone company to originate and 

termina te interexchange traffic is determined that the 

ultimate cost of service has not yet been defined. (TR 264) 

She also stated that until access costs are determined, the 

number of interexchange carriers to be certificated should 

remain an open issue. 

The President of Microtel sponsored pre-filed 

testimony consisting of composite Exhibit 6 appearing in 

Volume 5 of the record. Mr. Johnson descr ibed the system 

being constructed by Microtel pursuant to its previously 

granted author i ty combining digi tal switches and fiber optics 

to create a state of the art communications system. (TR 282) 

Mr. Johnson further explained that the law having been changed 

to encourage competition and the Commission having granted 

Microte1 a license in 1982 to construct a competitive network 

to the phone companies, he felt that there should be some 

reasonable period of time before potentially destructive 

duplicative services be authorized by the FPSC. (TR 300) 

No other direct testimony was presented by MCl nor any 

other party. 
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ISSUES PRESENTED� 

ISSUE NO. I. THE COMMISSION DEPARTED FROM THE ESSENTIAL 

REQUIREMENTS OF LAW BY IGNORING THE CRITERIA SET FORTH IN 

364.337, FLORIDA STATUTES, 1983. 

ISSUE NO. II. THE COMMISSION IS CONSTRUING SECTION 364.337(2) 

HAS BESTOWED UPON ITSELF AN UNBRIDLED DISCRETION TO ADJUDICATE 

PRIVATE RIGHTS IN CONTRAVENTION OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION; 

APPLICABLE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW; AND GOVERNING STATUTES. 

ISSUE NO. III. MICROTEL IS ENTITLED TO A REASONABLE PERIOD OF 

TIME TO PROVIDE THE SERVICES AUTHORIZED BY ITS CERTIFICATE 

BEFORE DUPLICATE AUTHORITY IS GRANTED TO OTHER CARRIERS. 
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Argument I 

ISSUE NO. I. THE COMMISSION DEPARTED FROM THE� 

ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS OF LAW BY IGNORING THE CRITERIA SET 

FORTH IN 364.337, FLORIDA STATUTES, 1983. 

Upon the record of this proceeding, it is clear that 

MCI sought authority which would allow it to operate 

facili ties completely duplicative of those approved for 

construction by Microtel in the Commission's Order No. 11095 

and in competition with interexchange (Le., long distance) 

services offered by Microtel and the other Flor ida telephone 

companies. (See generally TR 82-114, Ex. 3, 4). While the 

former statutory proscription against the competitive 

provision of intrastate long distance service in Flor ida was 

removed by the 1982 Florida Legislature, the Commission is 

still required to carefully scrutinize the application of 

specialized carriers seeking a certificate in competition with 

existing carriers under different requirements than those 

applied to conventional telephone companies. Section 364.337, 

Florida Statutes (1982) provides: 

·Section 364.337 Duplicative or 
competitive services. 

(1) When the commission grants a