BEFORE THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MICROTEL, INC.,

Appellant,

v.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION, ET AL.,

Appellees.

	SEP	\$ 1984	
	RK, SUDA	ENE CO	
CASE NOS. 64.			
CASE NOS. 04,	3VI Dep	ty Clerk	
65,	351	V	
(Consolidat	449 ed)		

APPEAL FROM ORDERS OF THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION GRANTING CERTIFICATES TO COMPETITIVE LONG DISTANCE TELEPHONE CARRIERS

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE UNITED STATES TRANSMISSION SYSTEMS, INC.

> BEN E. GIRTMAN B. KENNETH GATLIN Madigan, Parker, Gatlin, Swedmark & Skelding P.O. Box 669 Tallahassee, FL 32302

Attorneys for Appellee UNITED STATES TRANSMISSION SYSTEMS, INC.

MADIGAN. PARKER. GATLIN. SWEDMARK & SKELDING TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

INTRODUCTION

In this Answer Brief by United States Transmission Systems, Inc., Appellant, Microtel, Inc., may be referred to herein as "Microtel."

The Appelles may be referred to herein as follows: MCI Telecommunications Corporation (MCI), GTE Sprint Communications (GTE Sprint), Satellite Business Systems (SBS) and United States Transmission Systems, Inc. (USTS).

AT&T Communications of the Southern States may be referred to as "AT&T."

The Florida Public Service Commission may be referred to as the "Commission" or as the "PSC." PSC Order No. 13015 is attached hereto and referred to as "Appendix A." PSC Order No. 13284 is attached hereto and referred to as "Appendix B."

Each of these interexchange (long distance) carriers may be referred to as an "IXC."

The record will be referred to as "R. ."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellee USTS cannot adopt the Appellant's Statement of the Case or its Statement of the Facts, either in its main Brief or in its Supplemental Brief, in that they are conclusory, argumentative and incomplete. An alternative statement of the case is set forth below.

Appellant's Supplemental Brief (addressing Microtel's appeals of certificates granted to GTE Sprint, SBS and USTS) adopts the three issues and the legal arguments in its main Brief on its appeal of the certificate granted to MCI. No new issues are raised in Microtel's Supplemental Brief.

Telephone service is regulated in Florida by the Florida Public Service Commission pursuant to Chapter 364, Fla. Stat.

Telephone service consists essentially of local service and long distance service. Historically, the telephone companies in Florida operated in small local exchanges, primarily within cities, and provided services between and among telephones by use of lines strung on telephone poles. So as to avoid duplication of costs and to minimize rates to customers, the Florida Legislature mandated that there should be minimal, if any, duplication of these costs, which meant that each telephone company would be given a monopoly in a particular service area. In return for getting the exclusive right to serve a particular area, the telephone company submitted itself to the regulation by the State of Florida (i.e., by the Florida Public Service Commission and its predecessors). That regulation applied to both intrastate local and intrastate long distance service. The Bell system was the main provider of nationwide long distance service with the local telephone companies being primarily responsible for providing long distance service between local exchanges in their respective, certificated areas. Although this is a somewhat simplified statement of the previous structure of telephone operations, it serves to distinguish the types of services (local versus long distance) and the types of carriers (local and long distance carriers).

Advances in technology have substantially freed long distance telephone service from the exhorbitant costs of providing competing service and have enabled the regulatory authorities to authorize competition among carriers in providing long distance telephone service. Local telephone service is still strictly regulated in Florida.

Pursuant to the recent statutory amendments to Chapter 364, Fla. Stat. (more fully discussed in the brief of the Florida Public Service Commission and in other briefs of Appellees), the Florida Legislature specifically provided for competition among long distance carriers. (See, e.g., § 364.337, Fla. Stat.)

Because this was a new regulatory field and because of the statutory requirements which prevailed in 1980,

-3-

the Public Service Commission held extensive hearings on the first application to compete in the long distance telephone market in Florida. The Commission eventually considered five applications from "facilities-based competitors" (those carriers which would construct and use their own facilities), as opposed to mere resellers (those companies which merely purchase telephone services from existing companies and then resell those services to the general public). The facilities-based competitors are Microtel, Inc. (Microtel), MCI Telecommunications Corporation (MCI), GTE Sprint Communications (GTE Sprint), Satellite Business Systems (SBS) and United States Transmission Systems, Inc. (USTS). AT&TCommunications of the Southern States (AT&T) was heir to the long distance certificate held by Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph Company prior to the breakup of the Bell system. Microtel, Appellant herein, just happened to be the first of the facilities-based competitors to be granted a certificate by the Public Service Commission and now seeks to prevent four of the carriers from receiving certificates. However, Microtel has not sought appellate review of the certificate of public convenience and necessity granted to AT&T.

There are no other similar applications for long distance authority pending before the Florida Public Service Commission.

-4-

Microtel was the first carrier granted authority specifically for the purpose of competing with the Bell system and the other the traditional telephone companies in providing long distance telephone services in Florida. It now is trying to use the statute (which it used to acquire its authority to compete) against carriers similar to itself which also want to compete with the traditional telephone companies, with Microtel and with each other.

During the extensive Microtel hearings under the 1980 statute requiring same, the Commission acquired substantial information about the nature of the emerging technology and the regulatory environment which it was required to create among the competitors in this new field. (See legislative history discussed in the briefs of Appellees Public Service Commission). More abbreviated hearings were held in the case of MCI and GTE Sprint because of the change in statutory authorization and because the Commission already had acquired substantial information regarding the industry in its prior Microtel hearing. Subsequent statutory amendments and the availability of the Proposed Agency Action process enabled the Commission to further narrow their proceedings and still give full and complete consideration of the other applications for the same type of competitive, long distance service.

-5-

Microtel now seeks to slam the barn door shut on all others who seek to compete with Microtel in providing long distance telephone service in the new, competitive and less-regulated environment.

Telephone companies in Florida are not subject to regulation except by statutory mandate, and what the legislature requires, the legislature may modify or eliminate. It can provide for strict market entry or lenient market entry. It can provide for no regulation of market entry but still require regulation of utility rates and quality of service. It can require varying degrees of regulation of any combination of regulatory factors. Therefore, § 364.337, Fla. Stat., which contemplates competition in the long distance telephone market provides the method whereby carriers similar to Microtel can enter the market and compete.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

USTS adopts the facts as set forth in the Appellee Public Service Commission's Statement of the Case and Facts.

In addition, the following additional facts are relevant. On September 7, 1983, USTS filed its application for authority to compete in the long distance telephone market in Florida (R. 822). It contained 163 pages, including the application, schedules and exhibits required by the Commission. In addition, it filed a Petition to Establish Special Conditions and Exemptions, seeking to be exempt from numerous rules in the Florida Administrative Code which apply to the more traditional telephone companies. Those rules do not apply to long distance facilities-based competitors like USTS because they relate to local exchange service and rate base regulation.

Fifty days after USTS filed its application on September 7, 1983, Microtel filed on October 27, 1983, its Petition to Intervene and Request for Public Hearing (R. 999).

Microtel's Petition to Intervene and Request for Public Hearing was filed on November 17, 1983. The Commission allowed Microtel to intervene by its order No. 12695 dated November 17, 1983.

-7-

On February 20, 1984, the Commission entered its Order No. 13015, a notice of proposed agency action and denial of Microtel's request for a hearing which had not been timely filed.

The proposed agency action was considered by the Commission on May 1, 1984.

On March 6, 1984, Microtel filed a Petition on Proposed Agency Action Seeking Reconsideration, Order No. 13015 and a § 120.57 hearing pursuant to Rule 25-22.29(4), FAC. USTS filed a response on March 19, 1984, and AT&T filed a petition to intervene on March 23, 1984. USTS filed a response to AT&T's petition on March 30, 1984, to which AT&T responded on April 18, 1984.

On May 1, 1984, the Commission provided an opportunity for all interested persons to comment upon its proposed agency action in Order No. 13015.

On May 14, 1984, the Commission entered its Order No. 13284 entitled "Order Denying Petition for Reconsideration and Request for Hearing; Consummating Order." This Order granted final approval to USTS' application and granted its certificate.

There has been no motion for stay filed with the Commission or with this Court, and USTS has, therefore, been [providing interim state long distance service] under its certificate of public convenience and necessity as granted in Order No. 13284.

POINT I

THE COMMISSION COMPLIED WITH THE ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS OF LAW WHEN GRANTING THE CERTIFICATE TO USTS

Microtel erroneously suggests that the Commission must look only to § 364.337 to determine the criteria for the granting of a certificate to a telephone company to provide interexchange long distance telephone service in competition with other carriers.

Appellant has not challenged on appeal the correctness of the Commission's determination to deny Appellant's request for a hearing in this case. Having failed to timely file a request for hearing and not otherwise being "substantially affected," Microtel now confuses the standards required by the Commission in granting certificates to competing long distance telephone carriers.

Before § 364.337 comes into play, other statutory requirements must be considered by the Commission before it can grant a certificate.

Section 364.33, Fla. Stat., requires that all telephone companies (whether the traditional telephone companies or the new interchange facilities carriers) must acquire a certificate of public convenience and necessity before they can provide service in Florida.

-9-

Section 364.335(1), Fla. Stat., requires that the applicant for a certificate must (a) provide certain specific information to the Commission, and the statute lists certain subjects into which the Commission <u>may</u> inquire; (b) the applicant must file rate schedules with the Commission; (c) the applicant must file any application fee required by law; and (d) the applicant must submit an affidavit that the applicant has caused notice to be given to certain governmental entities and persons of its intention to file an application.

Appellee USTS complied with these requirements in detail, and Appellant Microtel has <u>not</u> contended that USTS failed to comply with these statutory requirements.

Subsections 364.335(2) and (3), Fla. Stat., also apply to all telephone companies and provide that a hearing shall be held by the Commission <u>if</u>, within twenty days following the date of filing of the application, an objection is filed or a request is filed by a substantially affected telephone company or consumer. As recited in the Commission's Order Nos. 13015 and 13284, Microtel failed to make a timely request for hearing and it did not have standing as a substantially affected telephone company merely because it would be required to face competition.

Microtel has not challenged the Commission's decision not to hold a hearing as requested by Microtel.

-10-

Contrary to the first three subsections of § 364.335 and the first sentence of subsection (4) which apply to all telephone companies, <u>the last sentence</u> of subsection 364.335(4) (as amended by section 3, Chapter 82-51, Laws of Florida) <u>applies only to local exchange services and</u> <u>not to the interexchange, long distance carriers</u> involved in this case (see asterisks below). The legislative amendment struck the words "which will" and inserted the words "local exchange" as shown below:

364.335 Application for certificate.--

ł

The commission may grant a cer-(4) tificate, in whole or in part or with modifications in the public interest, but in no event granting authority greater than that requested in the application or amendments thereto and noticed under subsection (1); or it may deny a certificate. The commission shall not grant a certificate for a proposed telephone company or for the extension of an existing telephone company, which will be in competition with, or which will duplicate the local exchange services provided by; any other telephone company, unless it first determines that the existing facilities are inadequate to meet the reasonable needs of the public and it first amends the certificate of such other telephone company to remove the basis for competition or duplication of services.

Therefore, the Commission is not required to make a determination ". . . that the existing facilities are inadequate to meet the reasonable needs of the public " before it can grant a competitive IXC certificate.

-11-

Chapter 82-51, Laws of Florida, which amended § 364.335(4), also created § 364.337, which provides that:

364.337 Duplicative or competitive services.--

(1) When the commission grants a certificate to a telephone company for any type of service that is in <u>competi-tion</u> with or that <u>duplicates</u> the services provided by another telephone company, the commission, if it finds that such action is <u>consistent</u> with the public interest, <u>may</u>:

(a) Prescribe different requirements for the company than are otherwise prescribed for telephone companies; or

(b) Exempt the company from some or all of the requirments of this chapter.

(2) In determining whether the actions authorized by subsection (1) are <u>consistent</u> with the public interest, the <u>commission shall consider</u>:

(a) The <u>number of firms</u> providing the service;

(b) The <u>geographic availability</u> of the service from other firms;

(c) The <u>quality of service</u> available from alternative suppliers;

(d) The <u>effect</u> on telephone service <u>rates</u> charged to customers of other companies; <u>and</u>

(e) <u>Any other factors</u> that the commission considers relevant to the public interest. [Emphasis added.]

Appellant's main Brief (p. 12) incorrectly asserts that the Commission cannot grant the certificate because there allegedly was insufficient evidence in the record for the Commission to make the "mandatory findings dictated by § 364.337(2)."

First of all, however, § 364.335(2) and (3), Fla. Stat., contemplate that the Public Service Commission need not hold a hearing on an application if no objection or request for a hearing is filed within 20 days following the date of filing of the application.

Although Microtel has not challenged the Commission's decision to deny its request for hearing, it is important to understand the context of the Commission's action and the evidence which the Commission had before it to understand the correctness of the Commission's actions.

Not only did Microtel not timely request a hearing, it <u>did not contradict any evidence</u> submitted by USTS nor did it raise any disputed issue of fact.

USTS had filed its application on September 7, 1983 (R. 822). In its Order No. 13015 (attached hereto as Appendix A), the Commission found that Microtel was not entitled to a hearing in this case:

> As stated earlier, Microtel filed a petition to intervene and a request for public hearing on October 27, 1983. Subsection 364.335(2), Florida Statutes., allows us to dispose of an application for a certificate without a hearing if we do not receive written objection to the application within <u>20 days</u> following the date the application was filed.

Alternatively, Subsection 364.335(3), Fla. Stat., provides that we must conduct a hearing if within <u>20 days</u> of the filing date we receive a written objection requesting a proceeding pursuant to Section 120.57, Florida Statutes, from, among others, any telephone company that would be substantially affected by the requested certification.

USTS' application was filed on September 7, 1983 and Microtel's request for hearing was filed on October 27, 1983, <u>fifty days later</u>. Because Microtel's request for hearing was not timely filed, we are not required to determine if Microtel is a telephone company that would be substantially affected by the certification, nor are we required to conduct a hearing.

In the past we have conducted hearings on our own motion when considering whether to grant an IXC's application. We have done so, in part, because we wanted to move cautiously into the new competitive environment for interexchange carriers. We note that Microtel has been a participant in every one of the hearings held to date.

Because we are not required by Section 364.335, Florida Statutes, to conduct a hearing pursuant to Microtel's request and because we do not believe there is anything further to gain from conducting a hearing to consider USTS' aplication, we deny Microtel's request.

The portion of this order denying Mictotel's request for hearing is issued as a final order and is not proposed agency action. [Emphasis added.] [PSC Order No. 13015, at 4-5.]

Nor is Microtel "substantially affected" by competition so as to give it standing to request a hearing under § 364.335(3), Fla. Stat. The statutory history of Chapter 364, and especially the more recent amendments, recognize the new technology and the fact that competition is taking the place of regulation in the telephone industry. This is merely an extension of the move toward deregulation both at the federal and state level. For example, Chapter 323 (trucking) and Chapter 364, Part II (radio common carriers) were repealed pursuant to the Florida Sunset Law, leaving those types of services unregulated. Airlines have been deregulated at both the state and federal levels.

Therefore, the new amendments to Chapter 364, Fla. Stat., specifically contemplate that competition will be generated by the PSC certification process. This statutory expectation is contrary to other, monopolistic regulatory statutes. For example, Microtel's brief cites Wetmore v. Bevis, 312 So.2d 722 (Fla. 1974), in which a new radio common carrier was given a reasonable time to commence operations and provide service before another radio common carrier could be certificated as a competitor. However, the governing statutes (Part II of Chapter 364, Fla. Stat., now repealed) required the Commission to first make a determination that the existing radio common carrier service was inadequate before it could grant a certificate to a competitive or duplicative radio common carrier. The 1982 amendments to the telecommunications statute eliminated a similar

-15-

restriction on granting certificates to competing interexchange long distance telephone carriers.

The words "public convenience and necessity" are construed to benefit the <u>public</u>, not a certificated <u>applicant such as Microtel</u>. <u>Greyhound Corp. v. Carter</u>, 124 So.2d 9, at 10-11 (Fla. 1960). Furthermore, the "necessity" that is required is the "reasonable necessity to meet the convenience of the public." <u>Fleet Transport</u> <u>Co. of Florida v. Mason</u>, 188 So.2d 294, at 298 hnn. 5, 6 (Fla. 1966).

The Commission further addressed Microtel's request for hearing and reconsideration of Order No. 13015. In its Order No. 13284 issued May 14, 1984 (R. 1039) consummating its Order No. 13015, the Commission again recited the lateness of Microtel's request for hearing and also stated that "Microtel's only interest affected by this proceeding seems to be the economic interest of a competitor." Order No. 13284, at 2.

Therefore, Microtel has not met the requirements for seeking a hearing pursuant to § 120.57 or §§ 364.335(2) and (3), Fla. Stat.

The limited regulation of competitive long distance carriers shows the legislative intent that the previously stringent limitations to entry, rate regulation, and other matters has been substantially decreased and almost eliminated. As shown by the Commission's consideration in Order No. 13015 (R. 1003), issued February 20, 1984, the purpose of the regulation is to protect the <u>customers</u> of interexchange carriers:

As we stated in our orders granting Microtel and MCI IXC authority, we are just beginning our journey into the competitive environment. Accordingly, it is premature for us to totally remove ourselves from the role of protecting USTS' (and other interexchange carriers') customers from possibly inappropriate rate practices. We hold the same belief that we did in the Microtel and the MCI proceeding that some approach to rates is needed that will not unduly hinder a competitive company's flexibility, but at the same time will still offer some protection to customers. To that end, we find that USTS shall file a tariff with this Commission when it initiates or changes rates and services 30 days prior to the tariff's effective date . . . [Emphasis added.] [Order No. 13015, at 3.]

In addition to the fact that Microtel did not have a right to the hearing in this case, the Commission based its decision upon competent and substantial evidence in the record which was not contradicted.

The application and other documents submitted by USTS (R. 822, <u>et seq.</u>), and Order No. 13015 of the Commission, show that USTS is a wholly-owned subsidiary of American Cable and Radio Corporation (AC&R). AC&R is wholly-owned by ITT Communications and Information Services, Inc. (ITT Coins), which is in turn wholly-owned by International Telephone and Telegraph Corporation (ITT Corp.). All of these companies are incorporated in the State of Delaware, and USTS is authorized to transact business within the State of Florida. [See Application, R. 822, p. 2, para. 5.]

In paragraph 10 of the USTS application, USTS specifically identified the type of service which it planned to provide:

10. Applicant proposes to offer to the general public for hire communications common carrier intercity services between points within the State of Florida. USTS plans to provide these services using its interstate facilities within the State of Florida that have been, and in the future may be, constructed or otherwise acquired pursuant to authority granted by [federal authorities] . . . [Further description of the service and facilities is provided in paragraph 10 of the application.]

Paragraph 11 of the application describes USTS' experience and technical capability to provide the service:

> 11. At present, USTS holds Certificates of Public Convenience and Necessity from the FCC to operate a nationwide interstate intercommunications system. These include authorizations for facilities located in the State of Florida that are used or designated to provide interstate communications services. USTS, owns and operates a \$141 million microwave system and provides services between 109 metropolitan areas in 34 states and the District of Columbia and spans more than 1700 miles.

Paragraph 11 of the application goes on to further describe the access for customers, additional microwave and terrestrial facilities in addition to satellite facilities. It notes that the 850 employees of USTS then were involved in preparing to provide the service.

Paragraph 12 of the application further describes the financial capability of the applicant and provides annual reports.

Paragraph 15 of the application further describes the services to be provided by USTS and distinguishes it from the services being offered by other applicants in that:

> . . . it contemplates a single system totally integrated with its interstate system to provide intercity telecommunication services within the State of Florida over a combination of its own facilities and leased lines. As this Commission noted in its Microtel order, "the mere existence of a unitary intrastate long distance communications network offers potentially unique benefits, by definition precluded under the geographically fragmented interexchange network now provided jointly by Southern Bell and the Independent telephone companies." Microtel, at 6. Additionally, the Commission has adopted a policy encouraging the development of competition in the intercity marketplace, see MCI Docket No. 12292, July 25, 1983 at 4 and has determined that MCI's entry would not result in wasteful duplication of facilities, id at 2. The grant of USTS' proposal, far from resulting in wasteful or uneconomic duplication of facilities, will enable USTS to make the most efficient use of its network, because any facilities operating in Florida will also be used in its interstate network. . .

> > -19-

The application (R. 822) also contains extensive financial data, maps of facilities and network locations, and engineering data.

None of this information was contradicted in the proceedings before the Commission.

USTS' application was filed in accordance with the rules of the Commission and provided all of the data required therein. The Commission specifically made the finding that USTS complied with the requirements of § 364.335(1), in filing its application (Order No. 13015).

The Commission previously had held extensive hearings on three of the first applications during which it acquired substantial data of a generic nature relating to the entire industry. [Microtel -- November 4-6, 1981; MCI -- March 21, 1983; GTE Sprint -- December 16, 1983.] This included the effects of competition in the industry and the economic information relevant thereto. Microtel participated in these hearings and was an intervenor in the proceedings relating to all of the other applicants.

Microtel seeks to have the Commission's order granting the certificate to USTS overturned because the Commission supposedly did not make findings of fact as required by § 364.337(2), Fla. Stat. To the contrary, the Commission <u>did</u> make those findings of fact in its Order No. 13015, as discussed <u>infra</u>, Point II. Furthermore, the information which Microtel would have the Commission make only after additional hearings is the generic type of information which the Commission acquire again in fact acquired by holding its previous hearings thereon. In Order No. 13015 and Order No. 13284 the Commission makes it clear that it had sufficient information, both from the generic hearings and from the specific evidence presented by USTS, to render its final decision and grant a certificate to USTS:

> In the past we have conducted hearings on our own motion when considering whether to grant an IXC's application. We have done so, in part, because we wanted to move cautiously into the new competitive environment for interexchange carriers. We note that Microtel has been a participant in every one of the hearings held to date.

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